
CONTOOCOOK  VAL L EY SCH OOL  DI STRI CT 
OFFI CE OF TH E SUPERI NTENDENT OF SCH OOL S 

106 H ancock  Road , Pet er bo r ough , NH , 03458-1197 
 

Telephone: 603-924-3336                                                                                       Fax: 603-924-6707 
  

 
EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, March 24, 2008 

7:00 P.M. 
SAU Office 

 
Attendees: Beverly Bacon, Stewart Brock, Dan Harper, Mary Loftis, Gail 
                    Cromwell, Lauren Kirkpatrick, Bart Goodeve, Tom Welden, 
                    Richard Bergeron, Don Johnson,  Gib West, Sue Dell, Joe 
                    Hayes, Jeanie West, Dick Dunning, Linda Compton,  
    

1. Approval of Minutes 
 Meeting of January 29, 2008 

Stewart Brock moved to accept the minutes of the January 29, 2008 meeting.  Gail 
Cromwell second.  Lauren Kirkpatrick and Dan Harper abstained.  All else in 
favor.   
 

2. Wellness Committee 
Don Johnson distributed a handout titled ConVal Wellness Council (see attachment #1).  
Don said that  membership has not been confirmed for this committee.  The next 
meeting is scheduled for April 30th at 3:00 p.m.  Bart Goodeve asked if the public could 
attend.  Don Johnson said that it will be a public meeting.   
Dan Harper asked what the goal will be.  He asked if the committee would be reviewing 
the menus and snack policies.  Don said that much of the policy is well implemented.  
They will make decisions on what we need to look at more closely.  One of the goals of 
the committee will be to assure that the policies are in place and are being followed. 
 

3. Health Committee Report 
Don referenced information in tonight’s packet about the ConVal Health Education 
Development.  Gail said that much time has been spent on this topic in the past.  Don 
said that the middle school is in need of alignment.  Training and implementation 
management is needed.  Stewart Brock asked if anyone has reviewed the report to 
verify how close the standards were to today’s standards.  Don said that the Health 
Committee has confirmed that they want to move forward with implementation.     
 

4. HILL Institute 
Don referenced the HILL flow chart distributed tonight (see attachment #2).  In addition, 
he distributed Phase I and Phase II and III of the HILL proposal.   
Don said that many have had a passion for RtI (Response to Intervention).  The HILL 
Institute is internationally known for building sustainability in the schools.  It fits the RTI 
program.  The model is based on literacy.  It is a multi-year process.  Don said that he 
 



 

would like to phase it into mathematics and other areas in the future.  Don said that Dr. 
Sandra Jones came to speak about this initiative.  Several pricing structures have been 
delivered.  Phase I implementation is set to begin this spring and be complete by June.  
Phase II and III will begin in the fall.  Funding comes from grant money.  The 
sustainability piece will require budgetary demands.  We will have literacy coaches that 
will be funded through Title IIA funds.   
Gail asked what Title IIA funds are.  Don said that they are a grant for highly qualified 
teachers and money for professional development.   
Don said that the focus is K-6 right now.  We currently have RtI coaches for grades 7-
12.  We are looking to supplement the basic program.  If we can get this implemented at 
the lower grades it will be easier to implement at the higher grades later on.   
Tom Welden asked for RtI information to be emailed to the Board.  He said that he has 
to believe that we are doing some type of literacy training currently.  He asked why the 
change and what are we changing?  Don added that the HILL organization does not 
bring a program with them.  This is a process to improve our programs focusing on 
literacy.  We currently have literacy programs.  The HILL will look at the resources that 
we currently have and what we are doing with assessments.  They will work with our 
staff to look at what we need to do to improve all of that.  Don said that the key is to 
build in the frameworks of RtI at the three levels.  The intention is that we will build 
systems within our systems to maintain this model.  We will expand to math and science 
after several years.   
Stewart Brock asked why not take on K-8.  Don said that he does not see the dollars to 
do that.  The Literacy coaches must be hired.  He is hoping that this can be done with 
Title IIA money.  Stewart said that he would like a proposal for the budget.  Don said 
that the HILL works primarily with the elementary levels so it makes sense to keep it  
K-6.     
Dick Bergeron provided an explanation of the RtI model that can address literacy as 
well as other academic areas.   
Gail asked why the special education areas are not implementing this.  Dick responded 
that they are not trained.   
Craig Hicks said that we never finished rolling out the curriculum that we started about 
ten years ago.  Dick said that even if we invested ten years ago, it has exhausted its life 
span.  It needs to be looked at again.   
Stewart asked how literacy bubbled up higher than math or science and what would the 
second choice have been.  Don said that he would have been just as happy if math had 
been the choice.   
Don said that the math team will work to provide a math pilot program.  Literacy is an all 
encompassing area.  We talk about writing across the curriculum.  It is a logical starting 
point for this.  It is a perfect framework to start off from.   
Dick said that the HILL has the coaching piece.  In addition, they don’t sell a program.  
They come program neutral.  The hope is that we can look at a program with expertise.   
Mary Loftis asked if literacy coaches were certified staff.  Don said that they will be well 
informed about differentiated instruction and able to work well in the classroom directly 
with the teachers.  It will help keep the district focused.   
 

5. NECAP Discussion 
Don distributed the NECAP results with the addition of Rhode Island and Vermont.  He 
said that staff development will be crucial in working with NECAP results.   
Stewart asked Don what he needed that he didn’t have to do what he wants to do.  Don 
said that he needs staff development time.  He is putting seven early release days into 
next years calendar for staff development.  
  



 

Dick said that in terms of staff development, the teacher’s contract doesn’t relate well.  
He said that ideally the times that staff can meet are all structured in the contract.  Bart 
said that as long as professional development is thought of as an hourly wage mentality 
we will get nowhere.  Craig asked for some idea of how other districts do this.  Bart said 
that it needs to be an expectation of performance.  It is more than just days.   
Dick Bergeron said that many districts do not count down the days.  There may be 
opportunities for teachers to meet twice a month or more.  It is the culture of the 
enterprise that needs to come across.   
Stewart suggested that this be brought to the full Board and asked if there was benefit 
to get the backing of the Board.  Don said that it is not needed on a full Board agenda 
but encouraged that more be presented on the process in the summer.  
 

6. CVHS Program of Studies – Sue Dell 
Sue Dell and Joe Hayes were present to discuss the Program of Studies for ConVal 
High School.   
Joe Hayes outlined the timeframe for development of the Program of Studies.  The 
deadline for getting it to the printer is usually March 1st.  The program and registration  
materials will be distributed on March 31st.  Discussions will take place about what 
students should be looking at.  This year, a mailer of the course recommendations will 
go home with each student for signature.  A second mailing will go home to parents 
after the original is edited.  The schedule is not run until early June.  Joe said that some 
of the changes are really re-packaging changes.  The Art Department has undergone 
some changes.  Joe explained the pathway changes that will create the opportunity for 
students to enter art programs without taking art foundations as in the past.  It allows 
talented art students to pursue art when they might not otherwise have.   
Gail Cromwell asked if Graphic Design courses counted for art credit.  Joe confirmed 
that they did but added that there is high demand for the graphic design courses.  Art 
background is important when pursuing Graphic Design.   
Joe said that in the English area, additions can be recognized.  He said that there has 
always been a concern about how to best serve struggling students.  English 
Competency was a course added to help struggling 9th and 10th grade students. It was 
found that some students actually saw decreases in success because of behavior 
problems in the class.  A model which would encourage students to achieve to a higher 
level is the focus.  American Cultural Studies developed from American Literature to 
have universal appeal to both the general level student and the college bound student 
as well.  In addition, every student will have had at least three credits in English.   
The Creative Writing course was formerly open to all students.  This will now be a 
junior/senior option.   
Gail asked about the Mythology offerings and Philosophy offerings.  Joe said that World 
and Classical Mythology were separated several years ago.  World Mythology is more 
contemporary than Classical.  Gib West said that a well rounded offering around student 
interest was a desire.   
Dick Bergeron asked Joe to describe the AP cycle in English.  Joe said that Honors 
English 9 and the Honors 10 and then on to AP was the usual path.  Dick asked if there 
has been consideration to combining English and Social Studies such as Cultural 
Studies.  Joe responded that three or four years ago there was a desire to offer 
American Studies.  It would require co-teaching.  There is sacrifice in terms of the 
numbers of seats.  Joe said that they have not had the latitude to sacrifice seats in 
either English or Social Studies.  There has been some desire but it is difficult to do in 
terms of numbers.   
 
 



 

Bart Goodeve asked about the pull back in terms of resources in the Creative Writing 
Program.  Sue said that pulling back on this would require fewer elective opportunities 
to be offered.  Bart asked if it was challenged that the writing program should have more 
resources in light of our scores.  Joe said that there is concern that creative writing does 
not provide the structural components.   
Dick Bergeron said that we want to challenge all of the ConVal teachers to be teachers 
of writing.   
Joe highlighted two changes in the area of Math.  A statistics course was taught at the 
college level.  A separation for Honors and College Level stats was requested.   
Joe said that students who are entering community colleges are not adequately 
prepared for college math.  Senior Math was added to better prepare students to test 
and take screening exams and succeed in the area of math.   
Dick Bergeron said that there has been a recently released document that identifies the 
math requirements for students to attend community colleges.   
Bart asked if anything is being done proactively to encourage students to take this 
course.  Joe Hayes said that each counselor is working with students that they feel 
would fit well into this course.   
Gail Cromwell said that she feels that Mathematics has suffered the most with block 
scheduling.  Joe said that we are now teaching Algebra 87 minutes each day, every day 
of the year.  Students are getting double the concentration in Algebra.   
Joe said that in the area of science, AP Chemistry and AP Biology are traded off 
depending upon sign-ups.  This year AP Chemistry was taught.   
Joe said that the Social Studies sequence has changed over the years.   
In the area of Special Education, Academic Support has been traditionally a 90 minute 
class.  It is too much time dedicated for the purpose originally designed.  The 
department is working on 45 minutes of generalized academic support and 45 minutes 
of curriculum support.  Focus will be gained.   
Dick Bergeron asked Sue Dell about Virtual High School.  Sue Dell said that we could 
offer two semesters because Heather Daly could teach the whole year.   
Tom Welden said that the Board thought that we were getting two teachers next year.  
Bart asked what the threshold was that a second teacher was warranted.  Sue said that 
it is demanding and requires self-control which students say is difficult to come by.  Bart 
asked if there was a notion that it would be good to expand upon by identifying students 
who might be appropriate for VHS.  Joe said that there isn’t hesitancy on the guidance 
counselor to promote it.  It takes a level of maturity and self discipline.  We do have 
students who are failing the courses.   
Stewart Brock said that one way to expand it is to have students sell it to other students.  
Joe said that it was a good idea to have students who have experienced a VHS course 
to go into upper level sophomore classes and explain to them that if they get shut out of 
an upper level course to try the VHS route.  Stewart said that it is important to know that 
the future of on-line learning is a critical component in value of opportunity.  Joe Hayes 
said that some high schools require all students to take one VHS course to graduate.   
Tom Welden asked about the adult learners who pursue a GED.  He asked if these 
offerings were open to them.  He also suggested that the opportunities be open to the 
outside community.   
Sue Dell said that they see on-line learning as an opportunity for the future.   
Bart suggested that the resource of an additional teacher for VHS should have been 
utilized for the floundering student.  Sue said that they are happy to market it better and 
bring more students into the program.   
 
 
 



 

Craig Hicks said that the VHS opportunity might be open to freshmen and sophomores 
before we lose the opportunity for those seats.   
Stewart suggested that the VHS opportunity be stated in a letter home to parents.   
Gib West asked if the Board supports the concept for some extraordinary middle school 
students accessing VHS opportunities at the high school.  It was confirmed.   

 
7. Other 

Beverly Bacon distributed a book titled The Tipping Point.   
 
The Education Committee Meeting concluded at 9:11 p.m.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda Marschok 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


